
  

 A D V A N C I N G G R E A T P L A C E S

  

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY / NORTH GEORGIA 
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION (TPO) 

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING 
 

June 17, 2014 (1:30-3:00 P.M. – DRC / Conference Room 1A) 
 

A G E N D A 
 
1. Approval of April 15, 2014 TPO Executive Board Meeting Minutes 

 (Chairperson, Formal Action Required)  
 

2. Approve by Resolution Revision to TPO Executive Board By-Laws 
(Karen Rennich, Formal Action Required) 

 
3. Approve by Resolution an Amendment(s) to the 2014-2017 Transportation Improvement Program 

• TDOT - Request for Orange Grove Capital Purchase Utilizing Funding from FTA 5310 Program 
Recommendation to Approve by Resolution by the TCC on May 6, 2014.  IAC concurred with exempt 
status on May 7, 2014. 

• GDOT – GA-0011682 Bridge Replacement on SR299  
Recommendation to Approve by Resolution by the TCC on May 6, 2014.  IAC concurred with exempt 
status on May 7, 2014. 

(Betsy Evans, Formal Action Required) 
 
4. Approve by Resolution the FY 2015 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) 

Recommendation to Approve by Resolution by the TCC on May 6, 2014 contingent on comments made by the 
state and federal partners being satisfactorily addressed by the TPO Staff prior to TPO Executive Board 
approval, and no significant changes being made.   
(Karen Rennich, Formal Action Required) 

 
5. Endorse 2014 Transportation Planning Prospectus 

Recommendation to Endorse by the TCC on May 6, 2014. 
(Karen Rennich, Formal Action Required) 

 
6. Endorse Chattanooga-Hamilton County / North Georgia Data Collection Process and Schedule 

Recommendation to Endorse by the TCC on May 6, 2014. 
(Yuen Lee, Formal Action Required) 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 
 
 
 
 

Chattanooga-Hamilton County
Regional Planning Agency

Chattanooga-Hamilton County/
North Georgia 

Transportation Planning 
Organization (TPO)

1250 Market Street, Suite 2000
Chattanooga, TN 37402

www.chcrpa.org
(423) 757-5216



  

 A D V A N C I N G G R E A T P L A C E S

 

7. Approve by Resolution Memorandum of Agreement with Cleveland MPO on Intelligent Transportation 
Systems (ITS) 
Recommendation to Approve by Resolution by the TCC on May 6, 2014. 
(Yuen Lee, Formal Action Required) 

 
8. Approve by Resolution Memorandum of Agreement - Chattanooga Area Regional Transportation Authority  

Recommendation to Approve by Resolution by the TCC on May 6, 2014. 
(Karen Rennich, Formal Action Required)   

 
9. Notice of New Public Participation Plan and Process 

(Karen Rennich, No Formal Action Required) 
 
10. Official Notice of Supplemental Call for Projects and Project Selection Process for STP-M (M-230) and TAP 

Unprogrammed Funds (GA Portion) 
(Betsy Evans, No Formal Action Required) 

 
11. Official Notice of FTA 5310 Transit Program Call for Projects & Project Selection Process 

(Jenny Park, No Formal Action Required) 
 
12. Staff Reports 

• Notice of 2014-2017 TIP Adjustments/Modifications 
• Green Trips Program Update (PowerPoint) 
• Alabama DOT Air Quality Agreement 
• Grants and Grant Awards 

 2014 CMAQ Awards Announcement 
• Conferences and Education Campaign 

 Navigating MAP-21 Workshop (July 10, 2014) 
 Calming Arterial Streets for Safer Walking and Cycling (June 18, 2014 @ DRC) 

• TDOT Project Status (April 11, 2014) 
• 2014 TPO TCC & Executive Board Meeting Calendar 

       (No Formal Action Required) 
 

 13.  Public Comments and Other Items of Importance 

       The next TPO Executive Board Meeting is August 19, 2014.  
       The next TPO Technical Coordinating Committee (TCC) meeting is July 1, 2014. 

 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

TPO EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING 
 
 

JUNE 17, 2014 
 
 

ITEM 1 
 
 

APPROVAL 
 

OF 
 

APRIL 15, 2014 
 

TPO EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Chairperson, Formal Action Required) 
 
 
 
 



Minutes prepared by Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Agency Page 1 
 

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY/NORTH GEORGIA 
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  
(CHCNGA TPO)  
 

MINUTES APRIL 15, 2014 1:30-3:00 P.M. Eastern 
      1250 MARKET STREET

                            SUITE 2000 
                            CHATTANOOGA, TN  

 

MEETING CALLED BY Chairman Todd Leamon 

TYPE OF MEETING TPO EXECUTIVE BOARD 

FACILITATOR Ms. Karen Rennich, Regional Planning Agency (RPA) 

NOTE TAKER Ms. Rozanne Brown, RPA 

QUORUM Yes 

ATTENDEES See Attachment 

 
ANNOUCEMENTS  

PUBLIC COMMENTS  

OTHER ITEMS OF 
IMPORTANCE 

Handouts:  Revised Draft Chattanooga Regional ITS Architecture (February 2014); Draft 
Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services Transportation Plan; TDOT I-24 Corridor Study (Final 
Report / Executive Summary); The Transportation Planning Process Key Issues (A Briefing Book 
for Transportation Decisionmakers, Officials, and Staff with Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st 
Century Act [MAP-21] A Summary of Highway Provisions); Sample TPO Executive Board Designee 
Letter; Limited English Proficiency (LEP) and RPA TITLE VI Packet; Work Zone Traffic 
Control/Flagging (January-April 2014); and 2014 TPO TCC & Executive Board Meeting Calendar. 

 

 
Agenda Topics 
 
ITEM #1.  APPROVAL OF FEBRUARY 18, 2014 
TPO EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING MINUTES CHAIRMAN TODD LEAMON

DISCUSSION  

Chairman Todd Leamon called the meeting to order, inquired if there were questions/comments regarding Item #1, or 
called for a motion to approve as presented. 

 

CONCLUSIONS  

There being no questions/comments, a motion was made to approve as presented, seconded and the motion 
carried. 

TCC/BOARD ACTION/RESOLUTION PERSON PRESENTED MOTION  
PERSON 
SECONDED 
MOTION 

APPROVAL OF FEBRUARY 18, 2014 
TPO EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 

Mr. Billy Cooper 
City of Ridgeside 

Mr. John Naylor 
Chattanooga 
Metropolitan 
Airport 
Authority 

STAFF FOLLOW-UP PERSON RESPONSIBLE  DEADLINE 

   

  



Minutes prepared by Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Agency Page 2 
 

 

ITEM #2.  APPROVE BY RESOLUTION AN AMENDMENT TO THE 
2014-2017 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) 

 MS. BETSY EVANS
                                             RPA STAFF 
 
 

      

 
Ms. Betsy Evans said that this amendment is adding three projects to the 2014-2017 Transportation Improvement Program.  She 
reviewed the projects and detailed pages were included in the meeting packet: 
 

o Project GA-0013068 (Gateway to Chickamauga Battlefield Local Access Road).  The IAC concurred that this 
project is exempt on February 19, 2014. 

o Project 33010 (TDOT I-24 Broad St and Market St Interchange Modifications Project).  The IAC approved the 
Conformity Determination Technical Memorandum on March 7, 2014.   

o Project GA-0013102 (SR 1/US 27 at CR 146/Twin Cedars Road Intersection Improvement).  IAC concurred this 
project is exempt on March 3, 2014. 

 
Ms. Evans said that a public meeting was held on March 6, 2014 and no comments were received.  She then inquired if there were 
any questions and there were none. 
 
 

 

CONCLUSIONS  

There being no questions/comments, a motion was made to approve as presented, seconded and the motion carried. 

TCC/BOARD ACTION/RESOLUTION PERSON PRESENTED MOTION  PERSON SECONDED 
MOTION 

APPROVE BY RESOLUTION AN AMENDMENT TO THE 
2014-2017 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) AS 
SHOWN 

Mr. Dave Cox 
Georgia Department of 
Transportation 

Commissioner  
Chester Bankston 
Hamilton County 
 

STAFF FOLLOW-UP PERSON RESPONSIBLE  DEADLINE 

   

 
ITEM #3.  APPROVE BY 
RESOLUTION THE INTELLIGENT 
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM (ITS) 
ARCHITECTURE AND  
DEPLOYMENT PLAN 

 MS. YUEN LEE
                                                   RPA STAFF 

DISCUSSION  

Ms. Yuen Lee said that any ITS projects using federal funds are required to be included in the ITS Architecture and Deployment Plan.  
The last update was completed in 2010 and, at that time, it was agreed that the plan would be updated approximately every four years 
in order to align with any changes in National ITS Architecture, priorities, and technology.   
 
Ms. Lee said that Kimley-Horn & Associates, Inc. was contracted late last year to assist with this plan update.  A draft was presented to 
the TPO Members in January 2014, and opened for public comment.  The draft was reviewed with FHWA and TDOT representatives, 
and comments were received which were incorporated into the plan, and a “Ready for Use” Letter is expected to be received in a couple 
of weeks.  A public meeting was held on January 7, 2014, and the TPO Technical Coordinating Committee recommended approval on 
March 4, 2014. 
 
Ms. Lee inquired if there were any questions or comments and there were none. 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Minutes prepared by Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Agency Page 3 
 

CONCLUSIONS  

There being no questions/comments, a motion was made to approve as presented, seconded and the motion carried. 

TCC/BOARD ACTION/RESOLUTION PERSON PRESENTED MOTION  PERSON SECONDED 
MOTION 

APPROVE BY RESOLUTION THE INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM 
(ITS) ARCHITECTURE AND  
DEPLOYMENT PLAN 

Mr. Ted Rogers 
City of Collegedale 

Mr. Blythe Bailey 
City of Chattanooga 

STAFF FOLLOW-UP PERSON RESPONSIBLE  DEADLINE 

   

 
 
ITEM #4.  APPROVE BY RESOLUTION AN UPDATE TO THE 
COORDINATED PUBLIC TRANSIT-HUMAN SERVICES 
TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

MS. JENNY PARK
                                       RPA STAFF 

DISCUSSION  

Ms. Jenny Park said the TPO Staff has completed an update to the Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services Transportation Plan 
(Coordinated Plan), and the purpose of the plan is to set local priorities for the transportation needs of elderly, low-income and 
disabled individuals.  This update is also intended to address the needs of the new federal transportation law (MAP-21), and to align 
the Coordinated Plan with the schedule of the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) process.    
 
Ms. Park said that the Coordinated Plan is required for communities who are seeking funds under FTA Section 5310 (Enhanced 
Mobility for Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities), and is primarily a program for capital funding of transit programs to address 
those needs.  It can also be accessed for some operating costs.   
 
In fiscal year 2014, the TPO area is able to access $397,834 through this program.  In February, 2014, Ms. Park said that the TPO 
designated the Chattanooga Area Regional Transportation Authority (CARTA) as the recipient of the FTA Section 5310 funds, and 
CARTA will hold a “call for projects” (in coordination with the TPO) after this plan is adopted.  She said that, should additional 
recipients like to apply for these funds, they will be able to do so through this process.   
 
Ms. Park said that the Coordinated Plan consists of four main components: 

• Description of Existing Transportation Services. 
• Needs Assessment Summary. 
• Strategies to Address identified Gaps Update. 
• Priorities for Implementation. 

 
Because of new MAP-21 requirements regarding who needs to be involved in the Coordinated Plan development, the Human Services 
Transportation Committee from the original 2007 Coordinated Plan process (updated in 2012) was reformed, and all of the parties 
were at the table during this Coordinated Plan update.  After discussions with this Committee by the TPO Staff, suggestions were 
made regarding some additional needs and strategies to address those needs.  However, the implementation priorities stayed the 
same as those made in the 2012 update. 
 
The TPO Technical Coordinating Committee opened the 2014 Coordinated Plan for public comment and recommended approval of the 
plan by resolution on March 4, 2014.  A public meeting was held on March 25, 2014, and there were no comments.  Staff also 
incorporated input from stakeholder interviews which were a part of the 2040 RTP process, since FTA is encouraging Metropolitan 
Planning Organizations to get on the RTP schedule with the Coordinated Plan.  Ms. Park said that copies of the Coordinated Plan were 
available at the meeting. 
 
Chairman Leamon inquired if there were questions or comments and there were none. 
 

CONCLUSIONS  

There being no questions/comments, a motion was made to approve as presented, seconded and the motion carried. 

TCC/BOARD ACTION/RESOLUTION PERSON PRESENTED MOTION  
PERSON 
SECONDED 
MOTION 

APPROVE BY RESOLUTION AN UPDATE TO THE 
COORDINATED PUBLIC TRANSIT-HUMAN SERVICES 
TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

 
Mr. John Naylor 
 

Mr. Billy Cooper 

STAFF FOLLOW-UP PERSON RESPONSIBLE  DEADLINE 



Minutes prepared by Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Agency Page 4 
 

 
 
 
    ITEM #5.  DISCUSS DATA COLLECTION          MS. YUEN LEE 
    PROCESS AND SCHEDULE         RPA STAFF 
 

DISCUSSION  

 
Ms. Yuen Lee said that the main reason for Cambridge Systematics, Inc. being asked to assist in the preparation of this Data 
Collection Process and Schedule was to help the TPO Staff to determine the long and short term data needs of the TPO to 
meet current federal transportation planning requirements (particularly for the Regional Transportation Plan, Transportation 
Improvement Program, Travel Demand Model and Congestion Management Process).  She said that this document also helps 
the TPO Staff to better understand the priorities, time schedule and appropriate data collection technology, and provides 
predictability for budget planning.  Ms. Lee said that, hopefully, this will provide the TPO with the best data available for the 
limited resources. 
 
Ms. Lee said that the draft document  (completed approximately two months ago by Cambridge Systematics, Inc.) was sent to 
TDOT, the UTK Center for Transportation Research, City of Chattanooga Transportation Department, and the Travel Demand 
Model consultant (Kimley-Horn & Associates, Inc.) for comment.  The TPO Staff is addressing and incorporating the comments 
into the final draft document, and making sure that the recommendations will work within the TPO work program and available 
budget.  The TPO Staff plans to present the draft Data Collection Process and Schedule to the TPO TCC in May 2014 for formal 
action and to the TPO Executive Board for endorsement in June 2014, and to begin data collection in Summer 2014. 
 
Ms. Lee said that, because this process is so unique and may be helpful to other MPOs, the TPO Staff will present the process 
to the Tennessee Model Users Group (TNMUG) in May 2014.  She inquired if there were any questions or comments and there 
were none. 
 

 

CONCLUSIONS  

No Formal Action Required 

 

TCC/BOARD ACTION/RESOLUTION PERSON PRESENTED MOTION  
PERSON 
SECONDED 
MOTION 

   

STAFF FOLLOW-UP PERSON RESPONSIBLE  DEADLINE 

   

 
 
 
        ITEM #6.  DISCUSS REVISION TO       MS. KAREN RENNICH 
        THE TPO EXECUTIVE BOARD BY-LAWS      RPA STAFF 
 

DISCUSSION  

 
Ms. Karen Rennich said that the proposed amendment to the TPO Executive Board By-Laws being discussed today involves 
several matters which were previously discussed by the TPO Executive Board members last spring.  She said that the TPO 
Staff has not moved forward with this amendment pending a decision by the federal partners regarding the need to add 
additional transit providers to the TPO Executive Board membership under the new transportation legislation.  However, 
since that guidance has not yet been received, the TPO Staff is moving forward today with this amendment regarding the 
previously discussed matters, and another amendment will be made should new guidance be received from the federal 
partners regarding additional transit members. 
 
Ms. Rennich said that the TPO Executive Board By-Laws revision is needed for three reasons: 

• Update the federal transportation legislation reference. 
• Update the titles of the Technical Coordinating Committee and the TPO Coordinator. 
• Update the Critical Vote based on 2010 Census population. 

   



Minutes prepared by Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Agency Page 5 
 

 
 
 
Ms. Rennich said that there were two previous questions from TPO Executive Board Members: 

1. How does a critical vote work? 
2. How a special census by a jurisdiction is handled, and would it trigger an update to the critical vote? 

 
The current TPO Executive By-Laws are unclear regarding how a critical vote process works.  Ms. Rennich said that it is 
essential that the critical vote process be clarified in the By-Laws and understood by everyone before a critical vote 
occurs.  The TPO Staff has looked at By-Laws for the Nashville and Memphis MPOs (see meeting packet for the detailed 
verbiage).  Ms. Rennich said that the Knoxville MPO By-Laws do not currently contain the critical vote process, and they 
are interested in what is implemented by this TPO.   
 
The meeting packet Staff Report described the recommendation being made by the TPO Staff (bolded language) for 
clarifying the critical vote (an issue of major importance weighted by population) in the TPO Executive Board By-Laws, 
which is closer to the Memphis language.   With adoption, the recommendation (bolded language) says that a critical vote 
could be triggered by an amendment to the: 

• Regional Transportation Plan. 
• Transportation Improvement Program. 
• Unified Planning Work Program. 
• TPO Executive Board By-Laws. 

 
The recommendation is for 51 percent of all eligible votes for formal action on a “Critical Issue” vote to carry.  Anything 
less than 51 percent will revert back to the initial vote.  Ms. Rennich said that the intention is that, in the event a critical 
vote occurs, everyone understands how that would operate. 
 
Referring to paragraph two of the recommendations shown in the meeting packet regarding “Special Census,” Ms. Rennich 
said that the TPO Staff is more familiar with how a special census would work in Tennessee (certified by Economic and 
Community Development).  She said that the staff has done some research on how a special census would work in 
Georgia, but that staff is less familiar with the process in Georgia, and she requested that anyone contact her who has 
additional information. 
 
Ms. Rennich encouraged everyone to review the staff recommendations to ensure understanding, and contact her with any 
questions or comments.  The proposed amendment will be presented at the next TPO Executive Board meeting for 
adoption on June 17, 2014. 
 
Chairman Leamon called for questions or comments and there were none. 
 

CONCLUSIONS  

No Formal Action Required 

 

TCC/BOARD ACTION/RESOLUTION PERSON PRESENTED MOTION  
PERSON 
SECONDED 
MOTION 

   

STAFF FOLLOW-UP PERSON RESPONSIBLE  DEADLINE 

   

 
 
        ITEM #7.  DISCUSS MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT     MS. KAREN RENNICH 
        CHATTANOOGA AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY   RPA STAFF 
        (CARTA) 
 

DISCUSSION  

 
Ms. Rennich said there are two items on today’s agenda pertaining to the Certification Review conducted by the state and 
federal partners in Spring 2013 (Item #7 and Item #9), which resulted in one “corrective action” being required for the 
TPO to ensure compliance with the comprehensive, cooperative, and continuous regional transportation planning process.  
 
The corrective action required that the TPO review and update a 1997 Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the 
TPO, Chattanooga Area Regional Transportation Authority (CARTA), and other partners concerning the comprehensive, 



Minutes prepared by Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Agency Page 6 
 

cooperative, and continuous regional transportation planning process, and signed by the Governors of Tennessee and 
Georgia.  This was not the first time that the recommendation for updating this MOU had been called to the attention of 
the TPO, and the deadline for compliance with the corrective action requirement is July 2014.  The TPO Staff made an 
alternative proposal to FHWA and FTA outlining what other actions have been taken by the TPO since 1997 and what other 
TPO agreements are in place.  FHWA and FTA accepted the alternative proposal made by the TPO Staff, which involves 
updating the TPO Planning Prospectus (Item #9), and this Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between the TPO and 
CARTA.  From FHWA and FTA, it is the understanding of the TPO Staff that the completion of these two actions will satisfy 
the requirements of the correction action.  Ms. Rennich gave special thanks to FHWA and FTA representatives for being 
willing to listen to the alternative proposal. 
 
Ms. Rennich said that the corrective action was right, in that the TPO did not have an updated agreement in place with the 
public transit provider as required by federal legislation to determine the responsibilities in carrying out the metropolitan 
planning processing in written agreements.  In cooperation with CARTA, the TPO Staff drafted the proposed TPO/CARTA 
MOA for transit planning, coordination and cooperation, which has been agreed by CARTA and reviewed by FHWA and 
FTA.  The proposed TPO/CARTA MOA is a written working agreement which mostly documents a process already in place.  
It clarifies roles and responsibilities with specific provisions for the Regional Transportation Plan, Transportation 
Improvement Program, and Annual List of Obligated Projects.   
 
Ms. Rennich said that the proposed TPO/CARTA MOA will go before the Technical Coordinating Committee in May 2014, 
and before the TPO Executive Board for adoption in June 2014 (within the required deadline for compliance with the 
correction action).  She inquired if there were any questions/comments, and there being none, said that she would then 
address the TPO Planning Prospectus update (agenda Item #9) out of order, since both Items #7 and #9 pertained to the 
corrective action. 
  

 

CONCLUSIONS  

No Formal Action Required 

 

TCC/BOARD ACTION/RESOLUTION PERSON PRESENTED MOTION  
PERSON 
SECONDED 
MOTION 

   

STAFF FOLLOW-UP PERSON RESPONSIBLE  DEADLINE 

   

 
         ITEM #8.  REVIEW KEY PROJECTS FOR      MS. KAREN RENNICH 
         FY 2015 UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM     RPA STAFF 
         (UPWP) 
 

DISCUSSION  

 
 
 
Ms. Karen Rennich said that the Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) lists the transportation studies and tasks to be 
performed by the TPO Staff or member agencies.  The TPO Staff has been preparing a two-year UPWP in the past, but 
that a one-year work program is being done for FY 2015 (October 1, 2014 – September 30, 2015) in order to get in cycle 
with the two-year Transportation Planning Contract with TDOT.  She said that it is difficult to organize the funds for a two-
year period which is not in line with the two-year state contract, and that she appreciates very much that the state and 
federal partners are allowing this one-year work program for FY 2015.  After FY 2015, the TPO will return to the two-year 
work program cycle which will be in line with TDOT’s schedule (FY 2016-2017).  The two-year cycle is preferred and allows 
for better seeing projects to completion.   
 
Ms. Rennich reviewed the major key items accomplished in FY 2014 including the 2040 Regional Transportation Plan (final 
approval received), TPO Staff participation in the 16 County Regional Planning Process, Data Collection Process & Schedule 
(nearing completion), and ITS Architecture and Deployment Plan (pending approval).  See meeting packet for further 
details. 
 
The initial work program proposal for FY 2015 includes: 

• Continuation of data collection for the next Regional Transportation Plan update, Travel Demand Model and 
Congestion Management Process. 



Minutes prepared by Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Agency Page 7 
 

• Updating the TPO Participation Plan.   
• Development of the FY 2016-2017 Unified Planning Work Program. 
• Partnering with CARTA on the Multimodal Transportation Center Study (providing coordination/staffing), which is 

looking at transit route planning and the potential multimodal center[s]). 
• Implementation of FHWA’s Invest Tool, which looks at impacts of planning and project implementation from the 

perspective of livability and environmental sustainability. 
• Development of specific targets for the TPO’s Performance Measures Framework (i.e., specified % reduction in 

VMT by X date).   
 
Ms. Rennich said that many of these items have previously been discussed by the TPO Members, and asked that she be 
advised if anyone has other suggestions to be considered for the FY 2015 UPWP.  She said that a draft of the document 
will be sent to TDOT (perhaps today), and come before the TCC in May 2014 for formal action, and before the TPO 
Executive Board for adoption in June 2014.  She inquired if there were questions or comments. 
 
Mr. John Bridger, RPA Executive Director, said that he wished to thank the TPO Staff which has taken a long-term view 
and developed an orderly plan for getting ready for the next Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) over the next three years.  
He said that the 2040 Regional Transportation Plan and mobility are very valuable to the work being done on the 
Comprehensive Plan update (kicking off this month).  In looking at the Comprehensive Plan update, Ms. Melissa Taylor’s 
team will be incorporating a lot of RTP elements into the Comprehensive Plan.  Mr. Bridger said that Staff wants to see the 
development policy match the transportation policy, and that the TPO members will be kept updated. 

CONCLUSIONS  

No Formal Action Required 

TCC/BOARD ACTION/RESOLUTION PERSON PRESENTED MOTION  
PERSON 
SECONDED 
MOTION 

   

STAFF FOLLOW-UP PERSON RESPONSIBLE  DEADLINE 

   

 
        ITEM #9.  DISCUSS PROSPECTUS UPDATE      MS. KAREN RENNICH 
              RPA STAFF 
 

DISCUSSION  

Ms. Rennich discussed the proposed 2014 Prospectus update out of order (following Item #7).  She said that the TPO 
Planning Prospectus was last updated in 2007.  It provides information about the existing process, TPO organization, 
partners, and structure of the TPO Executive Board, Technical Coordinating Committee, and TPO Staff.  She said that it is 
an important document that perhaps has not been highlighted as much as it should have been in the past, and it needs to 
be updated. 
 
The proposed 2014 Prospectus update has been substantially reworked to include more information about TPO partners 
(including transit partners like Southeast Tennessee Human Resources Agency [SETHRA]), who play an important role but 
were not previously highlighted in the Prospectus (not a being a formal TPO member).  All of the TPO MOAs are being 
added to the Prospectus so that they are all in one place, since they pertain to the TPO process.  A TPO planning area 
map has been added, along with a list of changes that could trigger a need to update the Prospectus.  Ms. Rennich said 
that all contact information has been updated, and she thanked everyone who reviewed and updated the language for 
their organization. 
 
Ms. Rennich said that she hopes that the Prospectus will assist all stakeholders in better understanding the TPO, and she 
has obtained a cost for perhaps translating the new Prospectus into Spanish for use in the TPO public outreach process.  
She requested that everyone review the draft document and offer any suggestions to help clarify the TPO process.  The 
draft document has some placeholder pages for items which will be added to the final document such as the TPO/CARTA 
MOA following approval.  Ms. Rennich expects the 2014 TPO Planning Prospectus to come before the TCC in May 2014 for 
formal action, and before the TPO Executive Board in June 2014 for endorsement. 
 
Both the 2007 Prospectus and the draft 2014 Prospectus are available on line at: 
http://www.chcrpa.org/TPO_reorganized/About the TPO/TPO Prospectus.htm 
 

CONCLUSIONS  

No Formal Action Required 



Minutes prepared by Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Agency Page 8 
 

TCC/BOARD ACTION/RESOLUTION PERSON PRESENTED MOTION  
PERSON 
SECONDED 
MOTION 

   

STAFF FOLLOW-UP PERSON RESPONSIBLE  DEADLINE 

   

 
 
        ITEM 10.  STAFF REPORTS        MS. KAREN RENNICH 
           RPA STAFF 
 

DISCUSSION  

 
Staff Reports are discussed selectively, or if there are questions.  Status summaries and contact information were 
included in the meeting packet for the following projects and programs, and no items required discussion. 
 

• Notice of 2011-2014 TIP Adjustments/Modifications 
• Potential Revision to the TPO Technical Coordinating Committee (TCC) By-Laws 
• Grants and Grant Awards  
• Navigating MAP-21 Workshop (July 2014) 
• Scheduling Update on Functional Classification System of Streets Revisions (Tennessee and Georgia Portions) 
• 2014 CMAQ Applications 
• 2014 Safe Routes to School (Tennessee Portion) Grant Submittals 
• TDOT I-24 Corridor Study Final Report (March 2014) 
• 2014 TPO TCC & Executive Board Meeting Calendar 

 

CONCLUSIONS  

TCC/BOARD ACTION/RESOLUTION PERSON PRESENTED MOTION  
PERSON 
SECONDED 
MOTION 

No Formal Action Required   

STAFF FOLLOW-UP PERSON RESPONSIBLE  DEADLINE 

 
      ITEM #11.  PUBLIC COMMENTS        MS. KAREN RENNICH 
                           RPA STAFF 

DISCUSSION  

Mr. Scott Allen (FHWA-TN) advised that the Highway Safety Improvement Program Notice of Proposed Rulemaking has been 
published on the Federal Register, and comments are allowed until May 27, 2014.  The National Performance Measures for the 
Highway Safety Improvement Program Notice of Proposed Rulemaking has also been published and the last date for comments 
is June 14, 2014.  Both documents can be viewed at:  www.regulations.gov (search for docket code FHWA-2013-0019, and 
FHWA-2013-0020, respectively).   
 
Ms. Karen Rennich called attention to the TDOT 25-Year Long-Range Transportation Plan Online Survey 
(www.tdot.state.tn.us/transportation), which is also available on the RPA/TPO website (http://www.chcrpa.org - click on the 
ICON, and Ms. Rennich will send the link to TPO Members.  She said that you can also schedule a Planner to speak at an event 
on the website.  Mr. Stacy Morrison, TDOT, said he would like to increase participation in the survey, and he encouraged 
everyone to take the survey and to circulate it within their organization. 

CONCLUSIONS  

The next TPO Executive Board meeting is June 17, 2014, and the next TPO TCC meeting is May 6, 2104. 
There being no further questions/comments, the meeting was adjourned by Chairman Leamon. 

STAFF FOLLOW-UP PERSON RESPONSIBLE  DEADLINE 

Staff will send the TDOT 25-Year Long-Range Transportation Online Survey 
link to TPO Members. Ms. Karen Rennich Done 

4/22/2014 

 





 
 

TPO EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING 
 
 

JUNE 17, 2014 
 
 
 

ITEM 2 
 

APPROVE BY RESOLUTION 
 

REVISION  
 

TO THE 
 

TPO EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

BY-LAWS 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Karen Rennich, Formal Action Required) 
 
 



  

 A D V A N C I N G G R E A T P L A C E S

 Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Regional Planning Agency 

 
Chattanooga-Hamilton County/ 

North Georgia  
Transportation Planning  

Organization (TPO) 
 
 

1250 Market Street, Suite 2000 
Chattanooga, TN 37402 

 
www.chcrpa.org 

(423) 757-5216 

 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE BY-LAWS OF THE 
CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY/NORTH GEORGIA 

TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
EXECUTIVE BOARD 

 
WHEREAS, the Chattanooga-Hamilton County/North Georgia 

Transportation Planning Organization Executive Board amends its by-laws when 
needed; and 
 

WHEREAS, this amendment was needed to update the federal 
transportation legislation reference, update the titles of the Technical Coordinating
Committee and the TPO Coordinator, and update the Critical Vote based on the 
2010 Census population and 2013 TPO planning area boundary change; and 
 

WHEREAS, these changes were reviewed and discussed by the Board at 
the April and June 2014 Executive Board meetings; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Executive Board 
approves an amendment to the By-laws on June 17, 2014 and, henceforth, will use 
them as their guide for proper procedure. 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVED:   DATE: ______________ 

 

__________________________   __________________________ 

Todd Leamon     John Bridger 
Chair, TPO Executive Board   Secretary, TPO Executive Board 
 



Approve by Resolution Revisions to the By-Laws of the Executive Board of the        
Chattanooga-Hamilton County/North Georgia Transportation Planning Organization (TPO) 
 
Staff Lead and Contact Information: 
Karen Rennich, TPO Coordinator 
643‐5903 or rennich_karen@chattanooga.gov 
 
TPO staff drafted revisions to the TPO Executive Board By‐laws. An amendment to the 
By‐laws is needed to: 
 

 Update the federal transportation legislation reference. 
 Update the titles of the Technical Coordinating Committee and the TPO Coordinator.  
 Update the Critical Vote based on 2010 Census population. 

 
Last year at the Executive Board meeting, two items came up regarding the Critical Vote: 
 

 How does the Critical Vote work? 
 If a jurisdiction has a special census certified by the state, can/should the Critical Vote 

count be updated? 
 
It is not clear in the Board’s current by‐laws how a Critical Vote is used.  Both the Nashville and 
Memphis MPO’s provide additional clarification on the use of a Critical Vote: 
 
Nashville 

 
Upon the announcement of a 'critical issue' (that being an issue judged by any voting 
members or their representatives to be of major importance to their governmental 
jurisdiction) then the number of votes for any member of the Executive Board will be as 
shown in Appendix A.  The number of votes for each member of the Executive Board 
shown in Appendix A shall be based on the population of the MPO study area 
represented by each member and will be based on the latest decennial federal census 
information. 
 
The 'critical issue' provision may be called only in relation to action by the Board on the 
adoption of the Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP) or Long Range Plan or part 
thereof, and amendment to either the TIP or Long Range Plan (or part thereof) or any 
amendment to the Prospectus of the MPO or these bylaws. 
 
If 'critical issue' has been called there cannot be a vote by the Executive Board on the 
amendment until thirty (30) days thereafter from the announcement of the issue of 
critical importance unless that member announcing the critical issue so agrees. 
 



Any 'critical issue' must be approved by a two‐thirds (2/3) population proportional vote 
of the Executive Board. 

 
Memphis 

 
Any Voting Member of the Transportation Policy Board following a regular vote of the 
board may declare a “Critical Issue” vote. 
 
If a deadline is not pending, the requested “Critical Issue” vote shall occur at the Board’s 
next scheduled meeting on a date no sooner than three (3) business days following the 
meeting in which the “Critical Issue” vote is requested. If postponing a “Critical Issue” 
vote until the next regularly scheduled meeting will result in a missed federal/state or 
statutory deadline, the “Critical Issue” vote shall be taken at the same meeting or a 
special called meeting. 
 
A “Critical Issue” may only be requested by a member in relation to action by the Board 
on the adoption or amendment to the following items: 

 Long‐Range Transportation Plan 
 Transportation Improvement Plan 
 MPO Prospectus 
 MPO By‐Laws 
 Unified Planning Work Program 

 
A “Critical Issue” vote requires 51 percent of all eligible votes to carry.  Anything less 
than 51 percent will revert back to the initial vote. 
 
If a deadline is not pending, the requested “Critical Issue” vote shall occur at the Board’s 
next scheduled meeting on a date no sooner than three (3) business days following the 
meeting in which the “Critical Issue” vote is requested. If postponing a “Critical Issue” 
vote until the next regularly scheduled meeting will result in a missed federal/state or 
statutory deadline, the “Critical Issue” vote shall be taken at the same meeting or a 
special called meeting. 
 
The current allocation of eligible “Critical Issue” votes is contained in Appendix A of 
these by‐laws. Said Appendix shall be revisited and updated as deemed necessary by the 
Transportation Policy Board. 

 
Staff Recommendation 
 

Staff recommends adding language to the Board’s by‐laws to clarify the use of the 
Critical Vote.  Currently, the existing language states: 
 



“Upon the announcement of a “critical issue” (that being an issue judged by any voting 
members or their representative to be of major importance to their governmental 
jurisdiction), then the number of votes for any member of the Executive Board will be as 
shown in Appendix A.  The number of votes for each member of the Executive Board 
shown in Appendix A shall be based on the population of the TPO Study Area 
represented by each member and will be based on the latest official U. S. Bureau of 
Census information.  When new U. S. Bureau of Census information is made available, 
voting strengths of each member in Appendix A will be adjusted according to population 
changes and approved by resolution of the TPO Executive Board.” 

 
Staff is proposing for discussion the following draft language (changes to existing by-laws are in 
bolded text) 
 
Upon the announcement of a “Critical Issue” (that being an issue judged by any voting members 
or their representative to be of major importance to their governmental jurisdiction), then the 
number of votes for any member of the Executive Board will be as shown in Appendix A.   
 
The number of votes for each member of the Executive Board shown in Appendix A shall be 
based on the population of the TPO Study Area represented by each member and will be based 
on the latest official U. S. Bureau of Census decennial census or a special census which is 
certified by the state for a jurisdiction. When new U. S. Bureau of Census decennial census 
information is made available or when the TPO is notified that a special census has been 
certified by the state for a jurisdiction, voting strengths of each member in Appendix A will be 
adjusted according to population changes and approved by resolution of the TPO Executive 
Board. 
 
A “Critical Issue” may only be requested by a member in relation to action by the Board on the 
adoption or amendment to the following items: 

 Regional Transportation Plan 
 Transportation Improvement Program 
 Unified Planning Work Program 
 TPO Executive Board By-Laws 

 
A “Critical Issue” vote requires 51 percent of all eligible votes for formal action on a “Critical 
Issue” vote to carry.  Anything less than 51 percent will revert back to the initial vote. 
 
If a deadline is not pending, the requested “Critical Issue” vote shall occur at the Board’s next 
scheduled meeting on a date no sooner than three (3) business days following the meeting in 
which the “Critical Issue” vote is requested. If postponing a “Critical Issue” vote until the next 
regularly scheduled meeting will result in a missed federal/state or statutory deadline, the 
“Critical Issue” vote shall be taken at the same meeting or a special called meeting. 
 



For your review: 
1. On the following page is a chart showing the vote based on the 2000 Census and the 

vote based on the current 2013 TPO planning area boundary. 
2. The attached draft TPO Executive By‐laws are shown with the proposed changes 

marked.   
 



STATE/COUNTY/CITY/MODAL AGENCY 2010 Census
TPO 
VOTES

Proportion 
of Vote

US CENSUS 
ESTIMATE

TPO 
VOTES

Proportion 
of Vote

STATE
Governor, Tennessee NA 1 0.89% NA 1 0.89%
Commissioner, Georgia GDOT NA 1 0.89% NA 1 0.89%
Tennessee TPO Area Legislator NA 1 0.89% NA 1 0.89%
Georgia TPO Area Legislator  NA 1 0.89% NA 1 0.89%

COUNTY
Catoosa County, GA (unincorporated) 51,349    12 10.71% 38,267                10 8.93%
Dade County, GA (unincorporated) 3,156      1 0.89% 2,367                  1 0.89%
Walker County GA (unincorporated) 27,964    6 5.36% 24,499                6 5.36%
Hamilton County, TN (unincorporated) (2 Representatives) 101,663 23 20.54% 87,617                23 20.54%

CITY
Chattanooga, TN (2 Representatives) 167,674 38 33.93% 155,554              40 35.71%
Chickamauga, GA 3,101      1 0.89% 2,245                  1 0.89%
Collegedale, TN 8,282      2 1.79% 6,514                  2 1.79%
East Ridge, TN 20,979    5 4.46% 20,640                5 4.46%
Fort Oglethorpe, GA 9,263      2 1.79% 6,940                  2 1.79%
Lakesite, TN 1,826      1 0.89% 1,845                  1 0.89%
Lookout Mountain, GA 1,602      1 0.89% 1,617                  1 0.89%
Lookout Mountain, TN 1,832      1 0.89% 2,000                  1 0.89%
Red Bank, TN 11,651    3 2.68% 12,418                3 2.68%
Ridgeside, TN 390         1 0.89% 389                      1 0.89%
Ringgold, GA 3,580      1 0.89% 2,422                  1 0.89%
Rossville, GA 4,105      1 0.89% 3,511                  1 0.89%
Signal Mountain, TN 7,554      2 1.79% 7,429                  2 1.79%
Soddy‐Daisy, TN 12,714    3 2.68% 11,530                3 2.68%
Walden, TN 1,898      1 0.89% 1,960                  1 0.89%

MODAL AGENCY
Chattanooga Area Regional Transportation Authority (CARTA) NA 1 0.89% NA 1 0.89%
Chattanooga‐Hamilton County Air Pollution Control Bureau NA 1 0.89% NA 1 0.89%
Chattanooga Metropolitan Airport Authority NA 1 0.89% NA 1 0.89%

TOTAL 440,583      112 389,764               112
Simple Majority 57 57

20002013 Boundary



 1

 
BY-LAWS OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD OF THE  

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY/NORTH GEORGIA  
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

FOR  
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 

 
AMENDED ON:  pending 

 
ARTICLE I – NAME 

 
The name of the organization shall be the Chattanooga-Hamilton County/North Georgia 
Transportation Planning Organization Executive Board. 
 

ARTICLE II – COMPOSITION AND VOTING 
 

1. The Executive Board shall be composed of principal elected officials of governmental 
jurisdictions and officials of agencies which administer or operate major modes of 
transportation in the metropolitan area participating in the Chattanooga, TN-GA Urbanized 
Area Transportation Planning process.  Membership by jurisdiction or agency is as follows: 

 
     Governor     State of Tennessee 
     Commissioner    Georgia Department of Transportation 
     Mayor     City of Chattanooga 
     Elected Representative   Chattanooga City Council 
     County Mayor    Hamilton County 
     Elected Representative   Hamilton County Commission 
     Elected Official    North Georgia Legislative Delegation 
         Catoosa, Dade, Walker Counties, Georgia 
     Elected Official    Tennessee Legislative Delegation, Hamilton 
          County, Tennessee 
     Chairman of the Board   Chattanooga Area Regional Transportation 
           Authority 
     Chairman of the Board   Chattanooga Metropolitan Airport Authority 
     Executive Director    Chattanooga-Hamilton County Air Pollution Control 
Bureau 
     Elected Representative   Dade County, Georgia Government 
     Elected Representative   Walker County, Georgia Government 
     Elected Representative   Catoosa County, Georgia Government 
     Mayor/Commission Representative Chickamauga, Georgia 
     Mayor/Commission Representative Collegedale, Tennessee 
     Mayor/Council Representative  East Ridge, Tennessee 
     Mayor/Commission Representative Fort Oglethorpe, Georgia 
     Mayor/Commission Representative Lakesite, Tennessee 
     Mayor/Commission Representative Lookout Mountain, Georgia 
     Mayor/Commission Representative Lookout Mountain, Tennessee 



 2

     Mayor/Commission Representative Red Bank, Tennessee 
     Mayor/Commission Representative Ridgeside, Tennessee 
     Mayor/Commission Representative Ringgold, Georgia 
     Mayor/Commission Representative Rossville, Georgia 
     Mayor/Council Representative  Signal Mountain, Tennessee 
     Mayor/Commission Representative Soddy-Daisy, Tennessee 
     Mayor/Alderman Representative  Walden, Tennessee 
 
2. The representative of the Chattanooga City Council, Hamilton County Commission, Dade 

County, Walker County and Catoosa County shall each be appointed to serve on the 
Executive Board by the respective government body. 

 
3. Upon the announcement of a “critical issue” (that being an issue judged by any voting 

members or their representative to be of major importance to their governmental 
jurisdiction), then the number of votes for any member of the Executive Board will be as 
shown in Appendix A.  The number of votes for each member of the Executive Board shown 
in Appendix A shall be based on the population of the TPO Study Area represented by each 
member and will be based on the latest official U. S. Bureau of Census decennial census or a 
special census which is certified by the state for a jurisdiction information.  When new U. S. 
Bureau of Census decennial census information is made available or when the TPO is 
notified that a special census has been certified by the state for a jurisdiction, voting strengths 
of each member in Appendix A will be adjusted according to population changes and 
approved by resolution of the TPO Executive Board. 

 
A “Critical Issue” may only be requested by a member in relation to action by the Board on the 
adoption or amendment to the following items: 

• Regional Transportation Plan 
• Transportation Improvement Program 
• Unified Planning Work Program 
• TPO Executive Board By-Laws 

 
A “Critical Issue” vote requires 51 percent of all eligible votes for formal action on a “Critical Issue” 
vote to carry.  Anything less than 51 percent will revert back to the initial vote. 
 
If a deadline is not pending, the requested “Critical Issue” vote shall occur at the Board’s next 
scheduled meeting on a date no sooner than three (3) business days following the meeting in which 
the “Critical Issue” vote is requested. If postponing a “Critical Issue” vote until the next regularly 
scheduled meeting will result in a missed federal/state or statutory deadline, the “Critical Issue” vote 
shall be taken at the same meeting or a special called meeting. 

 
ARTICLE III – DUTIES 

 
The Executive Board constitutes the forum for cooperative transportation decision-making in the 
Chattanooga Urban Area with responsibilities as follows: 
 
1. Administrative and Fiscal Control. 
 



 3

2. Review and approval of all transportation planning, programming, and implementation. 
 
3. Establishment of study committees as required to ensure cooperative, comprehensive, and 

continuing transportation planning. 
 
4. Establishment of a Public Participation Process. 
 
5. Collectively make progress towards projects and strategies that support the planning factors 

outlined in the Federal transportation funding legislation, most recently promulgated as 
Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act (MAP-21), passed by U. S. Congress on 
June 29, 2012, signed into law effective October 1, 2012 and set to expire October 1, 2014.  

 
a. Planning Factor #1:  Support the economic vitality of the metropolitan area, 

especially by enabling global competitiveness, productivity, and efficiency.  
 

b. Planning Factor #2:  Increase the safety of the transportation system for motorized 
and non-motorized users. 

 
c. Planning Factor #3:  Increase the security of the transportation system for 

motorized and non-motorized users. 
 

d. Planning Factor #4:  Increase the accessibility and mobility options available to 
people and for freight. 

 
e. Planning Factor #5:  Protect and enhance the environment, promote energy 

conservation, and improve quality of life; and promote consistency between 
transportation improvements and State and local planned growth and economic 
development patterns. 

 
f. Planning Factor #6:  Enhance the integration and connectivity of the 

transportation system, across and between modes, for people and freight. 
 

g. Planning Factor #7:  Promote efficient system management and operation. 
 

h. Planning Factor #8:  Emphasize the preservation of the existing transportation 
system. 

 
ARTICLE IV – ORGANIZATION 

    
1. The Executive Board shall elect a Chairman and Vice Chairman from its membership.  Such 

election shall require participation by a majority of the members present at that election.  
Should the Chair become vacant in mid-term, the Vice Chairman shall become Chairman; 
and a new Vice Chairman shall be elected.  Should the Vice Chairman be unable to serve as 
Chairman, elections shall be held for both Chairman and Vice Chairman. 

 



 4

2. Election of officers shall take place on the first meeting of even calendar years, and  the term 
of office shall be for two years or until such time as new officers are elected. 

 
3. An officer may succeed himself, with no limitation to the number of terms, contingent on 

eligibility as the result of being a principal elected official or an executive officer of a 
principal transportation agency. 

 
 

ARTICLE V – DUTIES OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN 
 

1. The Chairman shall preside at all meetings of the Executive Board. 
 
2. The Chairman shall authenticate, by his signature, all resolutions adopted by the Executive 

Board. 
 
3. The Chairman shall represent the Executive Board at hearings, conferences, and other events 

as required. 
 
4. In the absence of the Chairman, the Vice Chairman shall perform the duties of said 

Chairman. 
 
5. In the absence of the Chairman and the Vice Chairman, the Chairman’s designated 

representative shall perform the duties of said Chairman. 
 
6. In the absence of the Chairman, the Vice Chairman, and the Chairman’s designee, the Vice 

Chairman’s designated representative shall perform the duties of said Chairman. 
 

 
ARTICLE VI – DUTIES OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE TECHNICAL COORDINATING 

COMMITTEE (TCC)EXECUTIVE STAFF 
 

1. The Chairman of the Technical Coordinating Committee (TCC) Executive Staff shall serve 
as permanent Ssecretary of the Executive Board.  The alternate to serve as the Secretary of 
the TPO Executive Board will be the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning 
Agency Deputy Director /TPO Coordinator who shall have the privilege to fully carry out 
TPO Executive Board duties on behalf of the permanent Secretary. 

 
2. The Chairman of the Technical Coordinating Committee (TCC) Executive Staff shall be 

responsible for recording the proceedings of each Executive Board meeting; for preparing 
minutes and resolutions as adopted; and for disseminating the minutes and resolutions 
adopted at the meetings. 

 
ARTICLE VII – TRANSPORTATION PLANNING SERVICES 

 
1. Transportation Planning Services for the Transportation Planning Organization are provided 

by the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Agency through contracts with 



 5

State Departments of Transportation in accordance with requirements set by Federal 
Legislation. 

 
2. Transportation Planning Services include administration, project planning, technical support, 

and strategic long-range planning as outlined in an the annual Unified Planning Work 
Program.   

 
3. Study sub-committees shall be coordinated by the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional 

Planning Agency under the direction of the TPO Coordinator.Director of Transportation 
Planning. 

 
ARTICLE VIII – MEETINGS 

 
1. The Executive Board shall meet at least semi-annually or as required to accomplish 

administrative control of the planning process and maintain certification of the 
Transportation Planning Process. 

 
2. Each Executive Board member shall designate, in writing, an alternate representative to serve 

at meetings during said member’s absence. 
 
3. The presence of a majority of 12 members (amended 04/17/2012) of the Executive Board 

membership, or designated alternates, at Executive Board meetings shall constitute a quorum 
for business transaction.  A simple majority of the members present and voting at the 
Executive Board meeting shall be required for passage of the resolutions.  Abstentions do not 
count as a vote. 

 
4. At the first meeting of the calendar year, tentative dates for TPO meetings during the year 

will be set to assist agency members in meeting deadlines for project applications. 
 

ARTICLE IX – RULES OF ORDER 
 

1. The Executive Board shall conduct business as prescribed in Robert’s Rules of Order 
Revised unless prescribed otherwise by amendment to these By-Laws. 

 
2. The Secretary of the Executive Board shall be the Board’s Parliamentarian for the Executive 

Board. 
 

 
 

ARTICLE X – AMENDMENT TO BY-LAWS 
 

1. These By-Laws may be amended by affirmative vote of the majority of the members present 
at an Executive Board meeting where a quorum is present. 

 



 6

2. A By-Law change to the By-Laws shall be presented for consideration at a regular Executive 
Bboard meeting, with voting being deferred until the meeting subsequent to the meeting at 
which the By-Laws change to the By-Laws was proposed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 7

 
APPENDIX A 

 
CHATTANOOGA URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

EXECUTIVE BOARD CRITICAL ISSUE VOTING 
 

 
                                            2000                           TPO 

STATE/COUNTY/CITY/MODAL AGENCY        U.S. CENSUS ESTIMATE     VOTES 
 
Governor, Tennessee              1 
Commissioner, Georgia DOT             1 
Tennessee Legislator              1 
North Georgia Legislator              1 
Catoosa County, Georgia        38,267 (unincorp.)    10 
Dade County, Georgia          2,367 (unincorp.)      1 
Hamilton County, Tenn. (2 Representatives)      87,617 (unincorp.)    23 
   County Mayor 
   County Commissioner 
Walker County, Georgia         24,499 (unincorp.)      6 
Chattanooga, Tennessee (2 Representatives)             155,554      40 
Chickamauga, Georgia          2,245        1 
Collegedale, Tennessee          6,514        2 
East Ridge, Tennessee        20,640        5 
Fort Oglethorpe, Georgia          6,940        2 
Lakesite, Tennessee          1,845        1 
Lookout Mountain, Georgia         1,617        1 
Lookout Mountain, Tennessee         2,000        1 
Red Bank, Tennessee        12,418        3 
Ridgeside, Tennessee             389        1 
Ringgold, Georgia          2,422        1 
Rossville, Georgia          3,511        1 
Signal Mountain, Tennessee         7,429        2 
Soddy-Daisy, Tennessee        11,530        3 
Walden, Tennessee          1,960        1 
Chattanooga Area Regional Transportation            1 
   Authority (CARTA) 
Chattanooga-Hamilton Co.  Air Pollution Control Bureau          1 
Chattanooga Metropolitan Airport Authority            1 
         _______    ___ 
                            TOTALS:        389,764    112 
                

 
 
 



 8

APPENDIX A 
EXECUTIVE BOARD CRITICAL ISSUE VOTING 

  
STATE/COUNTY/CITY/MODAL AGENCY 2010 

Census 
TPO 

VOTES 
Proportion of 

Vote 

 
STATE  
Governor, Tennessee NA 1 0.89%
Commissioner, Georgia GDOT NA 1 0.89%
Tennessee TPO Area Legislator NA 1 0.89%
Georgia TPO Area Legislator  NA 1 0.89%
COUNTY  
Catoosa County, GA (unincorporated)       51,349  12 10.71%
Dade County, GA (unincorporated)         3,156  1 0.89%
Walker County GA (unincorporated)       27,964  6 5.36%
Hamilton County, TN (unincorporated) (2 Representatives)    101,663  23 20.54%
County Mayor    
County Commissioner    
CITY  
Chattanooga, TN (2 Representatives)    167,674  38 33.93%
Chickamauga, GA         3,101  1 0.89%
Collegedale, TN         8,282  2 1.79%
East Ridge, TN       20,979  5 4.46%
Fort Oglethorpe, GA         9,263  2 1.79%
Lakesite, TN         1,826  1 0.89%
Lookout Mountain, GA         1,602  1 0.89%
Lookout Mountain, TN         1,832  1 0.89%
Red Bank, TN       11,651  3 2.68%
Ridgeside, TN            390  1 0.89%
Ringgold, GA         3,580  1 0.89%
Rossville, GA         4,105  1 0.89%
Signal Mountain, TN         7,554  2 1.79%
Soddy-Daisy, TN       12,714  3 2.68%
Walden, TN         1,898  1 0.89%
MODAL AGENCY  
Chattanooga Area Reginoal Transportation Authority (CARTA) NA 1 0.89%
Chattanooga-Hamilton County Air Pollution Control Bureau NA 1 0.89%
Chattanooga Metropolitan Airport Authority NA 1 0.89%

TOTAL       
440,583  

112  

Simple Majority  57  
          



 
 
 
 

TPO EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING 
 
 

JUNE 17, 2014 
 
 

ITEM 3 
 

APPROVE BY RESOLUTION 
 

AN 
 

AMENDMENT(S) TO THE 
2014-2017 

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
(TIP) 

 
TDOT – REQUEST FOR ORANGE GROVE 

CAPITAL PURCHASE 
UTILIZING FUNDING FROM FTA 5310 PROGRAM 

 
GDOT – GA-0011682 

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT ON SR299 
 
 
 
 

        (Betsy Evans, Formal Action Required) 
 
 



  

 A D V A N C I N G G R E A T P L A C E S

 Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Regional Planning Agency 

 
Chattanooga-Hamilton County/ 

North Georgia  
Transportation Planning  

Organization (TPO) 
 
 

1250 Market Street, Suite 2000 
Chattanooga, TN 37402 

 
www.chcrpa.org 

(423) 757-5216 

 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY/NORTH GEORGIA  

TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

APPROVAL OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2014-2017 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Transportation has enacted rules and regulations 

regarding urban transportation planning as reflected in 23 CFR 450.320 and, thereby, established 

guidelines for the development, content, and processing of a cooperatively developed Transportation 

Improvement Program (TIP) in urbanized areas; and 

 WHEREAS, the Executive Board of the Chattanooga-Hamilton County/North Georgia 

Transportation Planning Organization (TPO) on January 7, 2014 approved the 2040 Regional Transportation 

Plan (RTP) which was later approved by the U.S. DOT and EPA for Air Quality Conformity in February 2014; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the TPO Board and State and Federal partners approved the 2014-2017 TIP and 

accompanying Conformity Determination Report in October of 2013, respectively, and found it consistent 

with the 2035 Long Range Transportation Plan and Air Quality Conformity; and 

 WHEREAS, the Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) has requested an amendment to 

the FY 2014 - 2017 TIP to amend project GA-0011682 to add funds and change the funding code to M001 

for the Construction phase; and 

 WHEREAS, the Tennessee Department of Transportation (TDOT) has requested an amendment to 

the FY 2014-2017 TIP to add project OrangeGrove, van purchase with 5310 funds; and  

 WHEREAS, the Interagency Consultation Committee has reviewed these projects for their impact 

to air quality under applicable Federal rules governing air quality conformity determination and proper 

documentation has been approved; and  

 WHEREAS, the Transportation Improvement Program remains fiscally constrained; and 

 WHEREAS, the TPO Technical Coordinating Committee has recommended approval of this TIP 

amendment which underwent review and public comment and no comments were received. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Chattanooga-Hamilton County/North Georgia 

Transportation Planning Organization approves the amendment of the FY 2014-2017 Transportation 

Improvement Program to include the above mentioned projects and certifies that the planning process 

addressing their inclusion has been conducted in accordance with all applicable requirements. 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVED:    DATE: ____________________ 

 

_____________________________   ___________________________ 

Todd Leamon     John Bridger 

Chair, TPO Executive Board    Secretary, TPO Executive Board 

 



Lead Agency GDOT

2014

TIP # GA-0011682

Route/Project Name I-24/SR 299

Termini or Intersection Bridge on SR 299

Project Description Bridge replacement- I-24 at SR 299 6 miles NE of New England

Length

$102,000 $81,600 $20,400

2015 $52,020 $41,616 $10,404

2015 $4,161,600 $3,953,520 $208,080

Remarks

County Dade mi

Fiscal Year Type of Work Funding Type Total Funds Fed Funds State Funds Local Funds

Amendment 1 

GDOT PIN # 0011682

LRTP# 185

Total Project Cost $4,315,620

Conformity Status Exempt

ROW

UTILITIES

CONST

M001

M001

L1C0

Improvement Type Bridge

Fiscal Years 2014-2017

Amended on

Transportation Improvement Program

Amendment 2 

Amended on

Adjustment 1 #

Adjusted on

Adjustment 2 #

Adjusted on

This map is for illustrative purposes only.  Drawings depict conceptual project corridors and areas, not approved alignments. 

Transportation Planning Organization                                                                                                                                            FY2014-2017 TIP 

evans_b
Text Box
OLD



Lead Agency GDOT

2015

TIP # GA-0011682

Route/Project Name I-24/SR 299

Termini or Intersection Bridge on SR 299

Project Description Bridge replacement- I-24 at SR 299 6 miles NE of New England

Length

$52,020 $41,616 $10,404

2015 $7,735,886 $7,349,092 $386,794

1
Remarks Old page 145.

County Dade mi

Fiscal Year Type of Work Funding Type Total Funds Fed Funds State Funds Local Funds

Amendment 1 

GDOT PIN # 0011682

LRTP# 185

Total Project Cost $7,787,906

Conformity Status Exempt

UTILITIES

CONST

M001

M001

Improvement Type Bridge

Fiscal Years 2014-2017

Amended on 6/17/2014

Transportation Improvement Program

Amendment 2 

Amended on

Adjustment 1 #

Adjusted on

Adjustment 2 #

Adjusted on

This map is for illustrative purposes only.  Drawings depict conceptual project corridors and areas, not approved alignments. 

Transportation Planning Organization                                                                                                                                            FY2014-2017 TIP 

evans_b
Text Box
NEW

evans_b
Highlight

evans_b
Highlight

evans_b
Highlight

evans_b
Highlight



Lead Agency TDOT

2014

TIP # OrangeGrove

Route/Project Name Van Purchase

Termini or Intersection Chattanooga TPO

Project Description Purchase of six vans for Orange Grove Center, Inc.

Length

$188,836 $151,068 $18,883 $18,883

1
Remarks New Page.

County Hamilton mi

Fiscal Year Type of Work Funding Type Total Funds Fed Funds State Funds Local Funds

Amendment 1 #

TDOT PIN

LRTP# PT-8

Total Project Cost $188,836

Conformity Status Exempt

CAPITALIZATION 5310

Improvement Type Transit Capital Project

Fiscal Years 2014-2017

Amended on 6/17/2014

Transportation Improvement Program

Amendment 2 #

Amended on

Adjustment 1 #

Adjusted on

Adjustment 2 #

Adjusted on

This map is for illustrative purposes only.  Drawings depict conceptual project corridors and areas, not approved alignments. 

Transportation Planning Organization                                                                                                                                        FY2014-2017 TIP 

evans_b
Text Box
NEW



 
 
 

TPO EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING 
 
 

JUNE 17, 2014 
 
 

ITEM 4 
 

APPROVE BY RESOLUTION 
 

THE 
 

FY 2015 
 

UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM 
 

(UPWP) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Karen Rennich, Formal Action Required) 



  

 A D V A N C I N G G R E A T P L A C E S

 Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Regional Planning Agency 

 
Chattanooga-Hamilton County/ 

North Georgia  
Transportation Planning  

Organization (TPO) 
 
 

1250 Market Street, Suite 2000 
Chattanooga, TN 37402 

 
www.chcrpa.org 

(423) 757-5216 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY/NORTH 
GEORGIA TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION TO 

APPROVE THE 
2015 UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM  

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the requirements of the US Department 

of Transportation, no planning activities can be funded by federal sources until 
they have been included in the Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP); and  
 

WHEREAS, the UPWP is the management plan for the Chattanooga-
Hamilton County/North Georgia Transportation Planning Organization’s 
transportation planning process and includes both programming and funding 
information; and  
 

WHEREAS, the 2015 UPWP was developed in spring 2014 with input 
from the TPO’s stakeholders; and  

 
WHEREAS, public participation has been conducted according to the 

approved process; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Chattanooga-
Hamilton County/North Georgia Transportation Planning Organization, the forum 
for cooperative decision making, does hereby approve to the 2015 UPWP for the 
Chattanooga-Hamilton County/North Georgia Transportation Planning 
Organization. 

 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVED:   DATE: ______________ 

 

__________________________   __________________________ 

Todd Leamon     John Bridger 
Chair, TPO Executive Board   Secretary, TPO Executive Board 
 



Approve by Resolution the FY 2015 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) 
 
Staff contact: 
Karen Rennich 
Rennich_karen@chattanooga.gov 
Direct line:  643-5903 
 
Key Projects 
Key projects for Fiscal Year 2015 include: 
 Participation in and input into the 16 county regional 

planning process; and 
 Continuation of data collection to monitor regional 

congestion and pursue data needs to update the travel 
demand model and regional land use model and to 
support other planning efforts such as adopted 
performance measures; and 

 Development Continuity of Operations Plan to ensure 
the stability of essential office functions in the 
occurrence of a major event/emergency/disaster; and 

 Development of focused land use and transportation 
planning in priority areas identified through the 
update of the countywide comprehensive plan 
including, but not limited to redevelopment and 
function studies of corridors, transit circulators, 
and/or multimodal access improvement; and 

 Develop the 2016-2017 Unified Planning Work 
Program; and 

 Implementation of FHWA’s Invest Tool to determine 
the impact of planning and project implementation 
from the perspective of livability and environmental 
sustainability; and 

 Updating the TPO’s Participation Plan to ensure 
adequate and effective citizen engagement in the 
transportation planning process; and 

 Partnering in the Multimodal Transportation Center Study providing project coordination and staff 
support; and 

 Development of specific targets (i.e. specified % reduction in VMT by X date) for the TPO’s 
Performance Measures Framework. 

Funding Amounts 
The FY 2015 funding amounts for the TPO’s planning work is as follows: 
TDOT contract planning (PL) funds:   $502,985 
GDOT contract planning (PL) funds:  $187,086 
TDOT Multimodal Transportation Resources Division contract (5303) funds:  $75,296 
FTA 5307 funds (CARTA is the designated recipient):  $100,000 
 
The draft UPWP may be found online at http://www.chcrpa.org/TPO.htm.   The draft document was 
submitted for review by GDOT, TDOT, FHWA and FTA.  The TPO should have any comments or required 

The Unified Planning Work Program 
(UPWP): The UPWP lists the 
transportation studies and tasks to be 
performed by the MPO staff or a 
member agency. Because the UPWP 
reflects local issues and strategic 
priorities, the contents of UPWPs 
differ from one metropolitan area to 
another. The UPWP covers a one- to 
two-year period. It typically contains 
several elements: 
• The planning tasks (e.g., data 

collection and analysis, public 
outreach, and preparation of the 
plan and TIP), the supporting 
studies, and the products that will 
result from these activities; 

• All federally funded studies as 
well as all relevant state and local 
planning activities conducted 
without federal funds; 

• Funding sources identified for 
each project; 

• A schedule of activities; and 
• The agency responsible for each 

task or study. 
Excerpt from The Transportation Planning 
Process: Key Issues from Federal Highway 
Administration, Federal Transit 
Administration



changes by June 5th.  Due to the required August 15th deadline for submittal of the final UPWP to FHWA 
and FTA, the TPO is on an accelerated schedule this year with a proposed action by the TPO Executive 
Board at their June meeting.   
 
The UPWP was discussed with the Georgia Advisory Committee at their April 29, 2014.  The TCC 
recommended approval conditioned to the state and federal comments being addressed and approved 
by the state and federal partners, and no significant changes being made since their review on May 6, 
2014.   
 



 
 
 
 

TPO EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING 
 
 

JUNE 17, 2014 
 
 

ITEM 5 
 

ENDORSE 
 

2014 
 

TRANSPORTATION PLANNING PROSPECTUS 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Karen Rennich, Formal Action Required) 



 
 

TPO EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING 
 
 
 

JUNE 17, 2014 
 
 

ITEM 6 
 
 

ENDORSE 
 

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY /  
 

NORTH GEORGIA 
 

DATA COLLECTION 
 

PROCESS 
 

& 
 

SCHEDULE 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

(Yuen Lee, Formal Action Required) 
 



Recommendation to Endorse Data Collection Process & Schedule Update  
 
Staff Lead and Contact Information: 
Yuen Lee 
Director, Research and Analysis 
423.643.5946 
lee_yuen@chattanooga.gov 

Summary 

The main purpose of the data collection process & schedule is to address the long term and short term 
data needs of the Chattanooga‐Hamilton County / North Georgia Transportation Planning Organization 
(TPO) to meet current Federal transportation planning requirements (specifically for the Regional 
Transportation Plan (RTP), Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), Travel Demand Model (TDM) 
and Congestion Management Process (CMP). To the extent allowed by the schedule and budget, it will 
also consider data needed to meet the upcoming Federal performance based transportation planning 
requirements. The data collection process and schedule will also help to provide predictability for 
budget planning. 
 
Cambridge Systematics, the consultant, has completed a draft that includes comparisons of up to 2‐6 
different data sources1 for each of 15 different data needs: 

 Travel Time Data 
 Internal Origin Destination Data 
 External Origin Destination Data 
 Roadway Volumes by Time of Day 
 Vehicle Classification Counts 
 Location Specific Crash Data 
 Pavement Quality Data 
 Bridge Condition Data 
 Bike/Ped Facilities 
 Bike/Ped Usage/Demand Data 
 Transit Ridership 
 Parking Cost and Location 
 Vehicle Occupancy 
 Non‐Recurring Delay 
 Incident Clearance Time 
 Transit Performance Measures 

   
The consultant also has provided recommendations for the most appropriate data collection 
technology, the priorities, cost estimates and a timeline to obtain each of the 15 data elements.  A 

                                                            
1 A few of the data needs, such as transit ridership and bridge condition data have one standard reliable data 
source, and therefore a comparison is not necessary. 



draft of the initial document was sent to TDOT, the UTK Center for Transportation Research and 
other appropriate TPO member departments and agencies for review and comment.   Those 
comments were addressed and incorporated into the final draft which is available on the website.  
 
Implementation is planned to begin Summer 2014.  This document was recommended for 
approval on May TCC meeting. 

http://www.chcrpa.org/TPO_reorganized/Data_Collection/FR1_CHCRPA%20Pln12_DtaCllPln_Process-Schedule-4-17-14clean.pdf


 
 
 
 
 

TPO EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING 
 
 

JUNE 17, 2014 
 
 

ITEM 7 
 

APPROVE BY RESOLUTION 
 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 
 

WITH 
 

CLEVELAND MPO 
 

ON 
 

INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS 
 

(ITS) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Yuen Lee, Formal Action Required) 
 



Recommendation to Approve by Resolution Memorandum of Agreement with Cleveland MPO on 
Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) 
 
Yuen Lee 
Director, Research and Analysis 
423.643.5946 
lee_yuen@chattanooga.gov 
 
Summary 

 
All Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) projects using Federal funds are required to conform to the 
national and a regional ITS architecture.  Both the Cleveland Urban Area MPO (MPO) and the 
Chattanooga Hamilton County‐North Georgia TPO (TPO) agree that it is important to develop their own 
ITS Architecture and Deployment Plans for their respective planning areas as each MPO/TPO has its 
unique local travel demands and travel markets.   
 
However, the MPO and TPO realize the necessity of the following: 
 

• Actively coordinating and cooperating in the development and maintenance of each other’s 
respective Regional ITS architecture; and 

• Including  the  Interstate 75  Fog Detection  System  in  the Chattanooga‐Hamilton County/North 
Georgia TPO Regional  ITS Architecture, given that the command and control operations of the 
system are located in Chattanooga;  

 
The purpose of this MOA is to document this mutual agreement and the coordination and cooperation 
regarding  the  ITS  architecture  and  Deployment  Plan  development  and  maintenance  between  the 
Cleveland Urban Area MPO and the Chattanooga Hamilton County‐North Georgia TPO. 
 
The MOA was recommended for  approval on the May TCC meeting. An unsigned copy of agreement is 
attached.   
 
 



  

 A D V A N C I N G G R E A T P L A C E S

 Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Regional Planning Agency 

 
Chattanooga-Hamilton County/ 

North Georgia  
Transportation Planning  

Organization (TPO) 
 
 

1250 Market Street, Suite 2000 
Chattanooga, TN 37402 

 
www.chcrpa.org 

(423) 757-5216 

 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A MEMORANDUM OF 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN CLEVELAND URBAN AREA 
METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION (MPO) 
AND CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY/NORTH 

GEORGIA TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 
ORGANIZATION (TPO) REGARDING INTELLIGENT 

TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM  

WHEREAS, there is a need to establish a coordinative and cooperative 
relationship on the deployment and maintenance of mutually benefiting Intelligent 
Transportation Systems (ITS) within and between Cleveland TPO and 
Chattanooga-Hamilton County /North Georgia TPO each respective planning 
area; and  

 WHEREAS, a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) has been drafted and 
presented to the TPO for review and action; and   

WHEREAS, the MOA provides necessary clarification of the 
responsibilities and role of each respective organization regarding developing and 
maintaining their ITS and particularly the Fog Detection System along Interstate 
75; and 

 WHEREAS, the TPO Technical Coordinating Committee recommended 
approval of the MOA to the Board on May 6, 2014. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Chattanooga-
Hamilton County/North Georgia Transportation Planning Organization, the forum 
for cooperative decision making, does hereby approve a Memorandum of 
Agreement between the Cleveland Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization and the Chattanooga-Hamilton County/North Georgia 
Transportation Planning Organization regarding the responsibilities and role of 
each respective organization on developing and maintaining their ITS. 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVED:   DATE: ______________ 

 

__________________________   __________________________ 

Todd Leamon     John Bridger 
Chair, TPO Executive Board   Secretary, TPO Executive Board 
 



 
 
 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN CLEVELAND URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

AND 
CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY/NORTH GEORGIA TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 

ORGANIZATION 
 
This Memorandum of Agreement between the Cleveland Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 
(MPO) and the Chattanooga-Hamilton County/North Georgia Transportation Planning Organization (TPO) is 
executed to establish a cooperative relationship on the deployment of mutually benefiting Intelligent 
Transportation Systems (ITS) which serve motorists and the traveling public within and between each 
respective planning area.  
 
Both the Cleveland Urban Area MPO and the Chattanooga-Hamilton County/North Georgia TPO are 
responsible for establishing a continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive multimodal transportation planning 
process for each of their respective planning areas, that encourages and promotes the safe and efficient 
development, management, and operation of surface transportation systems to serve the mobility needs of 
people and freight and foster economic growth and development, while minimizing transportation-related fuel 
consumption and air pollution.  
 
The Final Rule on ITS Architecture and Standards, published in 23 CFR Part 940, requires that all ITS projects 
using Federal Funds conform to a regional ITS architecture which adheres to the National ITS Architecture 
and Standards, and is based on a systems engineering analysis.  Development of the regional ITS architecture 
must be consistent with the statewide and metropolitan transportation planning processes. 
 
The Cleveland Urban Area MPO and the Chattanooga-Hamilton County/North Georgia TPO acknowledge the 
importance of interstate travel in the region, and the significance of ITS applications along Interstate 75 (I-75), 
such as the Fog Detection System. Equally, the Cleveland Urban Area MPO and the Chattanooga-Hamilton 
County/North Georgia TPO recognize that each MPO/TPO planning area has unique local travel demands and 
travel markets which necessitate separate ITS Architectures for their respective planning areas.  
 
The Cleveland Urban Area MPO and Chattanooga-Hamilton County/North Georgia TPO agree:  
 
1. To develop and maintain separate ITS Architectures for their respective MPO/TPO area;  
 
2. To actively coordinate and cooperate in the development and maintenance of each others’ respective 

Regional ITS Architectures;  
 
3. That the Interstate 75 Fog Detection System will be included in the Chattanooga-Hamilton County/North 

Georgia TPO Regional ITS Architecture, given that the command and control operations of the system are 
located in Chattanooga; and  

 
This agreement will remain in effect until terminated by any of the parties. Amendments to this agreement may 
be made by mutual agreement of both parties and approval by each respective Executive Board.  
 
 
Adopted this _____day of ___________, 2014  Adopted this _____day of ___________, 2014 
 
 
_________________________________    _____________________________________ 
Chairman, MPO Executive Board    Chairman, Executive Board  
Cleveland Urban Area      Chattanooga-Hamilton County/North Georgia  
Metropolitan Planning Organization    Transportation Planning Organization  
 









June 2014 Webinar for the TPO Education Campaign  
 

Cortney Mild 
Planner, Strategic Long-Range Planning 
Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Agency & CHCNGA TPO 
1250 Market Street, Suite 2000-DRC 
Chattanooga, TN  37402  
main 423.757.5216 direct 423.643.5914, mild_c@chattanooga.gov 
 
 
As part of the TPO Education Campaign, the Regional Planning Agency will present the following 
upcoming webinar: 
 
Calming Arterial Streets for Safer Walking and Cycling 
Date: Wednesday, June 18th  
Time: 3:00 – 4:00pm* 
Location: Room 3A ‐ Development Resource Center (1250 Market St; Suite 2000) 
 

Continuing Education Credits: The Association of Bicycle and Pedestrian Professionals (APBP) will 
provide an attendance certificate to those who document their professional development hours; each 
60-minute webinar provides one hour of training (.1 CEU). APBP applies to the AICP for Certification 
Maintenance credit for each webinar. 

* Attendees are invited to stay after to discuss how the lessons learned can be applied to our region. 



4/11/2014TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Project Status

No Projects Under Development in Hamilton CountyBRADLEY - HAMILTON - MEIGS COUNTY     SR-60

4-LANE NORTH OF I-75(WESTLAKE DRIVE) TO SR-58 IN HAMILTON COUNTY
Length - 7.9  (Preliminary Engineering)
The environmental studies are underway.

 PIN: 101430.00

HAMILTON COUNTY     I-24

INTERCHANGES AT SR-2(BROAD STREET) AND SR-58(MARKET STREET) IN
CHATTANOOGA
Length - 0.3  (Modify Interchange)
The engineering is scheduled to begin in the 2nd Quarter Calendar Year 2014.

 PIN: 112833.00

HAMILTON COUNTY     I-75

INTERCHANGE AT I-24
Length - 0.0  (Modify Interchange)
The planning report is complete.

 PIN: 114174.00

HAMILTON COUNTY     I-124   US-27

FROM NORTH OF I-24 TO SOUTH OF THE TENNESSEE RIVER BRIDGE
Length - 1.4  (Widen)
The right-of-way and/or utility process is underway.

 PIN: 103917.00

HAMILTON COUNTY     SR-2

(CUMMINGS HIGHWAY), INTERSECTION AT I-24 RAMPS IN CHATTANOOGA (RSAR)
Length - 0.1  (RSAR)
The engineering is scheduled to begin in the 2nd Quarter Calendar Year 2014.

 PIN: 118452.00

HAMILTON COUNTY     SR-2   US-11

INTERSECTION AT EDGMON ROAD (RSAR)
Length - 0.0  (RSAR)
The engineering is scheduled to begin in the 2nd Quarter Calendar Year 2014.

 PIN: 118502.00

HAMILTON COUNTY     SR-29   US-27

OLGIATI BRIDGE OVER TENNESSEE RIVER IN CHATTANOOGA
Length - 0.0  (Widen)
The right-of-way and/or utility process is underway.

 PIN: 112584.00

Page: 1



4/11/2014TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Project Status

HAMILTON COUNTY     SR-317

(BONNY OAKS DRIVE), FROM SR-17 TO I-75
Length - 4.8  (Widen)
The engineering is underway.

 PIN: 112152.00

HAMILTON COUNTY     SR-317

(APISON PIKE), FROM I-75 TO SR-321(OOLTEWAH RINGGOLD RD)
Length - 2.8  (Environmental Studies)
The environmental studies are complete.

 PIN: 107637.01

HAMILTON COUNTY     SR-317

(APISON PIKE), INTERSECTION AT OLD LEE HWY TO SR-321(OOLTEWAH-RINGOLD ROAD)
Length - 2.2  (Widen)
The right-of-way and/or utility process is underway.

 PIN: 107637.03

HAMILTON COUNTY     SR-317

SR-321(OOLTEWAH-RINGGOLD ROAD) TO EAST BRAINERD ROAD IN CHATTANOOGA
Length - 4.1  (Reconstruction)
The engineering is underway.

 PIN: 112524.00

HAMILTON COUNTY     SR-317

SR-321(OOLTEWAH-RINGGOLD ROAD) TO NEAR LAYTON LANE
Length - 2.4  (Reconstruction)
The engineering is scheduled to begin in the 2nd Quarter Calendar Year 2014.

 PIN: 112524.01

HAMILTON COUNTY     SR-317

NEAR LAYTON LANE TO EAST BRAINERD ROAD IN CHATTANOOGA
Length - 1.7  (Reconstruction)
This project is in the early stages of development.

 PIN: 112524.02

HAMILTON COUNTY     SR-320

EAST BRAINERD ROAD, FROM EAST OF GRAYSVILLE ROAD TO EAST OF BEL-AIR ROAD
Length - 2.1  (Widen)
A contract for construction is scheduled to be let in the 3rd Quarter Calendar Year 2014.

 PIN: 101431.00

Page: 2



4/11/2014TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Project Status

HAMILTON COUNTY

PELICAN DRIVE, INTERSECTION AT JERSEY PIKE IN CHATTANOOGA
Length - 0.0  (Realignment)
The engineering is underway.

 PIN: 108843.01

HAMILTON COUNTY

SHEPHERD ROAD, FROM SHALLOWFORD ROAD TO SHAW AVENUE (RSAR)
Length - 1.0  (RSAR)
The engineering is scheduled to begin in the 2nd Quarter Calendar Year 2014.

 PIN: 118769.00

HAMILTON COUNTY     SIA

INDUSTRIAL ACCESS ROAD SERVING VOLKSWAGEN GROUP OF AMERICA (EXPANSION) IN
CHATTANOOGA
Length - 0.3  (Intersection Improvements)
A contract for construction is scheduled to be let in the 3rd Quarter Calendar Year 2014.

 PIN: 117560.00

Page: 3



4/11/2014TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Project Status

No Projects Under Construction in Hamilton CountyHAMILTON COUNTY     SR-58
FROM LAKEWOOD ACRES ROAD TO GREENWOOD ROAD (RESURFACE & SAFETY)  LENGTH -
5.480

CONTRACT NO.:                    CNN016
LET TO CONTRACT:              2/14/2014
CONTRACTOR:                      WRIGHT BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC.
BID PRICE :                             $2,231,666.34
EST. COMPLETION DATE:    JULY, 2014

MARION - HAMILTON COUNTIES     I-24
FROM TENNESSEE RIVER BRIDGE TO GEORGIA STATE LINE IN HAMILTON COUNTY
(RESURFACING)  LENGTH - 6.010

CONTRACT NO.:                    CNM340
LET TO CONTRACT:              10/18/2013
CONTRACTOR:                      TALLEY CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC.
BID PRICE :                             $5,217,198.46
EST. COMPLETION DATE:    SEPTEMBER, 2014

HAMILTON COUNTY     SIA
INDUSTRIAL ACCESS ROAD SERVING VOLKSWAGEN GROUP OF AMERICA
(CONSTRUCTION-NEW)  LENGTH - 1.400

CONTRACT NO.:                    CNM139
LET TO CONTRACT:              5/24/2013
CONTRACTOR:                      WRIGHT BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC.
BID PRICE :                             $5,449,388.70
EST. COMPLETION DATE:    SEPTEMBER, 2014

HAMILTON - BRADLEY COUNTIES     I-75
CHATTANOOGA SMARTWAY ITS EXPANSION (INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM)
LENGTH - 11.400

CONTRACT NO.:                    CNM195
LET TO CONTRACT:              5/24/2013
CONTRACTOR:                      NABCO ELECTRIC COMPANY, INC.
BID PRICE :                             $1,343,145.50
EST. COMPLETION DATE:    MAY, 2014

Page: 4



4/11/2014TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Project Status

HAMILTON COUNTY     SR-8     US-41
INTERSECTION AT I-75 SOUTHBOUND OFF-RAMP (MISCELLANEOUS SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS)

CONTRACT NO.:                    CNM107
LET TO CONTRACT:              4/5/2013
CONTRACTOR:                      TALLEY CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC.
BID PRICE :                             $418,474.64
EST. COMPLETION DATE:    APRIL, 2014

HAMILTON COUNTY     I-75
NORTHBOUND OFF-RAMP AT SR-320(EAST BRAINERD ROAD), EXIT 3A (MISCELLANEOUS
SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS)  LENGTH - 0.095

CONTRACT NO.:                    CNL300
LET TO CONTRACT:              9/14/2012
CONTRACTOR:                      HIGHWAYS, INC.
BID PRICE :                             $608,517.00
EST. COMPLETION DATE:    APRIL, 2014

HAMILTON COUNTY
M12LTHQ_C33SR_TUNLCLN HAMILTON - MCCALLIE, BACHMAN AND STRINGERS RIDGE -
TUNNEL CLEANING (FY12) (MAINTENANCE)

CONTRACT NO.:                    CNL174
LET TO CONTRACT:              5/4/2012
CONTRACTOR:                      DIAMOND SPECIALIZED, INC.
BID PRICE :                             $176,169.80
EST. COMPLETION DATE:    APRIL, 2014

HAMILTON COUNTY     SR-29     US-27
FROM MANUFACTURERS ROAD(OLGIATI BRIDGE) TO SR-8(US-127, SIGNAL MOUNTAIN
BOULEVARD) IN CHATTANOOGA (RECONSTRUCTION)  LENGTH - 1.620

CONTRACT NO.:                    CNK233
LET TO CONTRACT:              10/28/2011
CONTRACTOR:                      WRIGHT BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC.
BID PRICE :                             $102,528,639.94
EST. COMPLETION DATE:    FEBRUARY, 2015

HAMILTON COUNTY
SHALLOWFORD ROAD, FROM GUNBARRELL ROAD TO JENKINS ROAD (WIDEN)  LENGTH - 1.100

CONTRACT NO.:                    CNK814
LET TO CONTRACT:              10/28/2011
CONTRACTOR:                      HIGHWAYS, INC.
BID PRICE :                             $3,398,029.40
EST. COMPLETION DATE:    APRIL, 2014

Page: 5



4/11/2014TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Project Status

HAMILTON - BRADLEY - MARION COUNTIES
CHATTANOOGA ITS MAJOR PHASE (INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM)

CONTRACT NO.:                    CNG916
LET TO CONTRACT:              9/19/2008
CONTRACTOR:                      STANSELL ELECTRIC CO., INC.
BID PRICE :                             $21,105,602.50
EST. COMPLETION DATE:    APRIL, 2014

Page: 6



 
2 0 1 4  T P O  M E E T I N G S

Chattanooga-Hamilton County / North Georgia Transportation Planning Organization 
TECHNICAL COORDINATING COMMITTEE (TCC) (YELLOW) - EXECUTIVE BOARD (GREEN) – EXECUTIVE BOARD & TCC (ROSE) 

Phone:  (423)757-5216 - Fax: (423)757-5532 – Email: tpo@chattanooga.gov 
ALL MEETINGS ARE HELD AT THE DEVELOPMENT RESOURCE CENTER (ROOM 1A), 1250 MARKET STREET, CHATTANOOGA, TN  

(1:30-3:00 P.M. EASTERN) -  UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 
HOLIDAYS (RED):  New Years Day / M. L. King, Jr., Birthday / Good Friday / Memorial Day / Independence Day / Labor Day /  

Thanksgiving Day / Day After Thanksgiving / Christmas Day 
 

JANUARY – 7th - Exec Board 1:30-3:00 P.M. 
TCC 10:30-12:00 @ DRC/2B or 1:30 Combined 1A 
Sun Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat 

     1 2 3 4 
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 31   
 

FEBRUARY 
Sun Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat 

      1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
23 24 25 26 27 28    

 

MARCH 
Sun Mon Tues Wed   Thur Fri Sat 

     1 
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
30 31       

 

APRIL 
Sun Mo Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat 

   1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
27 28 29 30        

 

MAY 

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thur Fri Sat 

   1 2 3 
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 

JUNE 
Sun Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 
29 30  

 

JULY 
Sun Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat 

   1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 29 30 31      
 

AUGUST 
Sun Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat 

    1 2 
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
31        

SEPTEMBER 
Sun Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30      
 

OCTOBER 
Sun Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat 

     1 2 3 4 
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
26 27 28 20 30 31   

 

NOVEMBER 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

      1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30  

DECEMBER 
Sun Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat 

1 2 3 4 5 6 
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30 31     
 

 




